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INTELLIGENCE INVESTIGATION 

Wednesday, December 10, 1975 

United States Senate, 

Select Committee to Study Governmental 

“Operations with Respect to 

Intelligence Activities, 

Washington, D. C. 

The Committee met, pasa ee notice, at 10:10 

o'clock a.m., in Room 318, Russell Senate Office Building, 

the honorable Frank Church (Chairman of the Committee) 1 

presiding. — | . 

Present: Senators Church (presiding), Hart of Michigan, 

Mondale, Huddleston, Hart of Colorado, Baker, Goldwater and 

Mathias. 

Also present: William G. Miller, Staff Director; Frederick 

A. O. Schwarz, Jr., Chief Counsel; Curtis R. Smothers, Minority 

Counsel; Paul Michel, Joseph @diGenova, Barbara Banoff, Frederick 

Baron, Mark Gitenstein, Loch Johnson, David Bushong, Charlies 

Lombard, John Bayly, Charles Kirbow, Michael Madigan, Bob 

+ ree ae Kelley, John El1liff£, Elliot Maxwell, Andy Postal, Pat Shea, 

Michael Epstein and Burt Wides, Professional Staff Members. 

The Chairman. The Committee's witness this morning is 
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the Honorable Clarence M.-.Kelley, the Director of the Federal 

‘Bureau of Investigation. 
- 
— 

Mr. Kelley was appointed Director in uly of 1973 ina 

troubled ‘ina for the FBI. His experience as an innovative 

law enforcement shminieevatos in charge of the Kansas City 

Police Department for over ten years, and his previous work as 

a Special Agent of the FBI have made him uniquely qualified 

~~ lead the Bureau. 

The Select Committee is grateful for the cooperation 

extended by Director Kelley in dis course of its inquiry over 

the past months. The accaieiaies Se also impressed by the 

openness of the FBI's witnesses before this Committee, and 

their willingness to consider the need for legislation to- 

clarify the Bureau's intelligence responsibility. 

It is important to remember from the outset that this 

Committee is examining only a small portion of the FBI's 

activities. Our hearings have concentrated on FBI domestic 

intelligence operations. We have consistently expressed our 

admiration and support for the Buveauce criminal investigative 

and law enforcement work, and we recognize the vital importance 

of counterespionage in the modern world. But domestic 

intelligence has raised many difficult questions. 

The Committee has also concentrated on the past rather 

than on present FBI activities. The abuses brought to Light 

in our hearings occurred years and even decades before Directo 

cld:32989566 Page 6 
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= 1 Kelley took charge. = 

: 2 The Staff has advised the Committee ie anitiae Director 

: 3 Kelley the FBI has taken significant steps to rethink previous 

: A policies and to iil: scone safeguards against abuse. The > 

5 FBI is now placing greater emphasis on foreign related intelli 

6 gence operations, and less on purely domestic surveillance. 

9 The FBI is working more closely with the Justice Department in 

8 developing policies and standards for ntetieedees These 

9 are welcome developments. | 

10 Nevertheless, many important issues remain unresolved, 

W Therefore, we have invited Director Kelley to share with the 

: 12 Committee his views on some of the considerations the Congress 

13 should take into account in thinking about the future of 

° 1A FBI ener ET dees: Among these issues are whether FBI surveil | 

i5 lance should extend beyond the investigation of persons 

16 likely to commit Soeei £16 esinees whether there should be | 

17 outside supervision or approval before the FBI conducts certai 

18 types of investigations Or uses Certain surveillance itiadaciak: 

5 19 whether foreign related intelligence activities should, be 

3 90 strictly separated from the FBI's domestic law enforcement 

: 271 functions, and what should be done to the information already 

3 | 29 in the FBI files and that which ney go into those files in 

: 23 the future. | 

i 24 The Committee looks forward to a constructive exchange 

: 95 of views with Director Kelley this morning, with Attorney 
. 

a 

HW 55124 |DoclId: 32989566 Page 9 



oe | | a 2450 - 

zi General Levii tomorrow, and with both the FBI and the Justice 

2 Department in the next months as the Committee considers 

5 recommendations that will strengthen the American people's 
Phone (Arua 202) §44-6000 

A confidence in the Federal Bureau of Investigation. That 

5 confidence is vital for the effective enforcement of Federal 

6 law and for the security of the nation against foreign 
| 
i 9 espionage. 

8 Director Kelley, we are pleased to welcome you, and if 

| 9 you would have a prepared statement you would like to lead off 
| : ‘ 

10 with, please proceed. 
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STATEMENT OF THE HONORABLE CLARENCE M. KELLEY, 

DIRECTOR, FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 

Mr. Kelley. Thank you very much, Senator Church and 

'gentlemen. 

IL welcome Gis interest which this Committee has shown in 

the FBI and most particularly in our operations in the intelli 

gence and internal security fields. 

I share your high regard for the rights guaranteed by the 

Constitution and laws of the United States. Throughout my 

ema 

35—year career in law enforcement you will find the same insis 

tence, as has been expressed by this Committee, gon programs 

of law enforcement that are themselves fully consistent with 

law. a 

I also have strongly supported the eoncepE of legislative 

oversight. ta fact, at the time my appointment as Director of 

the FBI ae was being considered by the Senate Judiciary 

Committee two and one half years ago, I told the members of 

that Committee of my firm belief in Congressional oversight. 

This Committee has completed the most exhaustive study 

of our intelligence and security operations that has ever seen | 

undertaken by anyone outside the FBI other than the present 

Attorney General. At the outset, we pledged our fullest 

cooperation and promised to be as candid and forthright as 

| 

| 
possible in responding to your questions and complying wit your 

LS quest Sts . 
ocld:32969566 Page 11 
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I believe we have lived up to those promises. 

The members and staff of this Committee have had unprece- 

dented access to FBI information. 

You have talked to the personnel who conduct security-type 

investigations and who are personally involved in every facet 

of our day-to-day intelligence operations. 

You have attended numerous briefings by FBI officials who 

have sought to familiarize Pee eomucess and its staff with 

all major areas of our activities and operations in the national 

security and intelligence fields. 

In brief, you have had firsthand examination of these 

matters fiat te unmatched at any time in the history of the 

Congress. . | : ° 

As this Committee has stated, these hearings have, of 

necessity, fofcused iaegeisy on certain errors and abuses. LT 

credit this Committee for its forthright recognition that the 

hearings do not give a full or balanced account of the FBI's | 

record of performance. 

ot 

It is perhaps in the nature of such hearings to focus 

on abuses to the exclusion of positive accomplishments of the 

organization. 

The Counterintelligence Programs which have received the | 

lion's share of public attention and critical comment constituted 

an infinitesimal portion of our overall work. 

A Justice Department Committee which was formed last year 

oe eral ware Actes DP BY, 
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to conduct a thorough study of the FBI's Counterintelligence 

Programs has reported that in the five basic ones it- found 

3,247 Counterintelligence Programs saci aaad ail to FBI 

Headquarters from 1956 to 1971. Of this total, 2,370, 

less than three fourths, were approved. 

I repeat, the vast majority of those 3,247 proposals were 

being devised, considered, and many were eer in an era 

when the FBI was handling an average of 700,000 investigative 

matters per are. 

Nonetheless, the criticism which has been expressed 

regarding the Counterintelligence Programs is most legitimate 

and understandable. 

The question might well be asked what I had in mind ae 

I stated last year that for the FBI to have done less than it 

did under the circumstances then existing would have been an 

abdication of its ees ponsipiiieies to the ‘enceeae people.. 

What I said then, in 1974, and what I believe today, is 

that the FBI employees involved in these programs did what the 

felt was expected of them by the President, the Attorney General, 

the Congress, and the people of the United States. 

Bomb explosions.-rocked public and private offices and 

buildings; rioters led by revolutionary extremists laid seige 

to military, industrial, and educational facilities; and 

acts of viclence from New England to California. 

ocld: 32969566 Page 13 
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} The victims of these acts were human beings men, women, 

and children. As is the case in time of peril, whether real or 

perceived, they looked to their Government, inks elected and 

suede leadership, and to the FBI and other law enforcement 

agencies to protect their lives, their property, and their 

rights. a 8 Pe ee er a = ys 

There were many calls for action Erom Members of Congress 

and others, but few guidelines were furnished. The FBI and other 

law enforcement agencies were besieged by demands, impatient 

demands, for immediate action. 

Li / FBI employees recognized the danger; felt they had a 

L? 

18 

Lg 

\ 

responsibility to respond; and in good faith initiated actions . 

designed to countéY conspiratorial efforts of self~proclaimed 

revolutionary groups, and to neutralize violent activities. 

In the development and execution of these programs, 

mistakes of judgment admittedly were made. 

Our concern over whatever abuses occurred in the Counter- 

intelligence Programs, and there were some substantial ones, 

; should not obscure the underlying suEneee of those programs. 

We must recognize that situations have occurred in the 

past and will arise in the future where the Government may well 

be expected to depart from its traditional role, in the FBI's 

case, aS an investigative and intelligence-gathering 

agency, and take affirmative steps which are needed to meet 

an imminent threat: to human life or property. 

entreaties Rr rata PN Calta rf ONTO 

ocld: 32969566 Page 14 
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1 - In short, if we learn a murder or bombing’ is to be carried 

2 ye now, can we truly meet our responsibilities by investigating 

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000 
3 only after the crime has occurred, or should we have the 

4. ability to prevent? I refer £5 those instances where there is 

5 a strong sense of urgency because of an imminent threat to 

6 {| human life. a ee 

Y ° Where there exists the potential to penetrate and disrupt, 

8 || the Congress must consider the question of whether or not such 

9g {|| preventive action should be available to the FBI. 

10 These matters are currently being addressed by a task 

1 force in the Justice Department, including the FBI, 

v2 and I am confident that Departmental guidelines and controls ca) 

WARD & PAUL 

Z be developed in cooperation with pertinent Committees of Congress 

14 || to insure that such measures are used in an cities responsible 

NY 
15 manner. 

16 / _ Probably the most important: question here today is what - 

17 Gina I can give that the errors and abuses which arose 

18 _— the Counterintelligence Programs will not occur again? 

19 First, let me assure the Committee that some very sub- 

20 stantial changes’ have been made in key areas of the FBI's 

2) methods of operations Since I took the oath of office as 

292 Director on July 9, 1973. 

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003 

23 Today we place a high premium on openness, openness 

24 both within and without the service. 

25 4 have instituted a program of open, frank discussion 

4 
HW 55124 ocld: 32989566 Page 15 
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5 1 in the decision-making process which insures that no future 
i 

2 ‘program or major policy decision will ever be adopted without a 

: 5 | full and spieaeea review of its propriety. } 

4 Participatory management has become a fact in the FBI, 

5 I have made it known throughout our Headquarters and 

6 Field Divisions that I welcome all -employees, regardless of 

9 position or degree of experience, to esneriburs their thoughts 

8 and suggestions, and to voice whatever criticisms or 

9 reservations they may have concerning any area of our operation 

10 The ultimate decisions in the Bureau are mine, and I take 

Ll full responsibility for them. My goal is to achieve maximum | 

: 12 critical analysis among our personnel without in any manner 
& 

c Ls weakening or undermining our basic command structure. ; 
3 

14 The results of this program have been most Pennies ae 

15 me personally, to the FBI‘s disciplined performance, and to 

16 the morale of our employees. 

17 In addition, since some of the mistakes of the past: 

rene ttre nary Ci ae ra 

13 were occasioned by direct orders from higher authorities os 
. | | 

19 the FBI, we have welcomed Attorney General. Edward Levi's | 

20 guidance, counsel, and his continuous availability, -in his. 

21 own words, “as a ‘lightning rod‘ to deflect improper requests." 

22 Within days after taking office, Attorney General Levi 

23 instructed that I immediately report to him any requests 

2 or practices which, in my judgment, were improper or which, 
410 First Street, S.£., Washington, D.C. 20003 

24 | 

25 ||' considering the context of the request, I believed presented 
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s 1 || the appearances of impropriety. 
q ; 

g 2 I am pleased to report to this Conmittee as i have to the 

a 5 Attorney General that during my nearly two and one half years a 

4 || Director under two Presidents and three Attorneys General, no 

5 one has approached me or made overtures, directly or otherwise, 

6 to use the FBI for atic political or other improper 

9 purposes. 

8 I can assure you that I would not for a ficial inliinkiass 

9 honoring any such easuaet. 

520 I can assure you, too, in my administration of the FBI 

11 i routinely bring to the attention of the Attorney General and 

12 | the Deputy Attorney General major policy questions, including 

EE PT 13 those which arise in my continuing review of our operations and 
WARD & PAUL 

14 practices. These are discussed openly and. candidly in ordex 

15 | that the Attorney General can exercise his responsibilities 

16 over the FBI. 

Wy, roam convinced that the basic structure of the FBI today 

| 

18 is sound. But‘it would be a mistake to think that integrity 

19 can be assured only through institutional means... 

20 Integrity is a human quality. It depends upon the 

21 character of the person who occupies the office of the 

29 Aiealons and every member of the FBI under him. | 
{ 

23 I am proud of the 19,000 -men and women with whom it is | 

{ 
24 my honor to serve today. Their dedication, their professionalisn, 

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003 

O85 their standards, and the self-discipline which they personall vi 
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demand of themselves and:-expect of their associates are the 

nation's ultimate assurance of proper and responsible conduct 

at all eae by the FBI. 

The Congress and the members of this Committee in 

particular have gained a great insight into. the. problems 

confronting the FBI in the .security and.intelligence fieldsy 

problems which all too often we eG ig é resolve without 

sufficient guidance from the Executive Branch or the Congress 

itself. 

As iy all human endeavors, errors of judgment have been 

made. But no one who is looking for the cause of our 

failures should confine his search solely to the FBI, or even 

to the Executive Branch. : 

The Congress itseif has long possessed the mee nenem Gon 

FBI oversight; yet, seldom has it been exercised. 

An initial step wae taken in the Senate in 1973 when the 

Committee on the Judiciary established a Subcommittee on FBI 

Oversight. Hearings had been commenced, and we were fully 

committed to maximum participation wieh the members of that 

Subcommittee. | | ~ 

I laud their efforts. However, those efforts are of very 

recent origin in terms of the FBI's history. 

One of the greatest benefits of the study this Committee 

has made is the expert knowledge you have gained of the complex | 

problems confronting the FBI. But I respectfully submit that | 

pC Td: 32969566 Page 14 
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1 those benefits are wasted if they do not lead to the next step, 

a step that I believe is absolutely essential , a legislative 

Phone (Area 202) 544-6000 a charter, expressing Congressional determination of intelligence 

4 jurisdiction for the FBI. 

° Action to resolve the problems confronting us in the 

6 security, and intelligence fields is urgently needed; and it 

7 must be undertaken in a forthright aaa. Neither the Cangres} 

8 nor the public can afford to look the other way, leaving it to 

9 the FBI to a6 ee must be done, as too often has occurred in 

10 |} the past. 

aol This means too that Congress must assume a continuing role 
Py 2 | 

Lz not in the initial decision-making process but in the review of 
J 

p - 
Z LS eur performance. 
> 

L4 I would caution against a too-ready reliance upon the 

15 courts to do our tough thinking for us. Some proposals that 

16 have been advanced during these hearings would extend the role 

17 | of the courts into the early stages of the investigative 

L8 process and, thereby, would take over what historically have 

19 been Executive Branch decisions. | 

20 - I frankly fad that such a trend, if unchecked ,- would 

21 seriously undermine the independence of the Judiciary and cast. 

Ra them in a role not contemplated by Ge auieee of our 

ae Constitution, Judicial review cannot-be a substitute for Con-~- 

24 gressional oversight or Executive decision. 
410 First Street, 5.£., Washington, D.C. 20003 

“20 The FBI urgently needs a clear and workable determination 
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of our jurisdiction in the intelligence Fields jurisdictional 

statement that the Congress finds to be responsive to both 

the will and the needs of the American people. 

Senators, first and foremost, I am a police officer, a 

career police officer. ee police experience, the m@st 

frustrating of all problems that I have discovered facing 

law enforcement in this countryy*Federal, state, and Localy” 2s 

ARE uHtEae 
1 demands are made of them to perform their traditional 

role as protector of life and property without) clear and 

understandable legal bases to do so. 

I recognize that the Formulation of such a tag tziatinis 

charter will be a most precise and demanding task. 

It must’ be sufficiently flexible that it does not stifle 

the FBI's effectiveness in combating the growing incidence 

of crime and violence across the United States. That charter 

must clearly address the demonstrated problems of the past; 

yet, it must amply recognize the fact that times change -and 

SO also do the nature and thrust of our criminal and subversive 

‘challenges. 

The fact that the Department of Justice has commenced 

+ 

—- 

* 

the formulation of operational guidelines governing our 

intelligence activities does not in any manner diminish the nee 

} 

for legislation. The responsibility for conferring juris- | 

diction resides with the Congress. 

In this regard, I am troubled by some proposals which 

FR EA, Pepi, Peat Nat ate 
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nd 
question the need for intelligence gatheringy suggestimg that 

a 

information needed oe the prevention of violence can be 

acquired in the normal course of criminal investigations. 

As a practical matter, the line between. intelligence 

woxk and regular criminal investigations is often difficult 

to describe. What begins as an intelligence cicada cides may 

well end in arrest and prosecution of hie subject. But there 

are some fundamental differences between these investigations 

that should be recognizeda differences in scope, in objective 

and in the time of initiation. In the usual criminal case, a 

crime has occurred and it remains only for the Government to 

identify the perpetrator and to collect sufficient evidence 

for prosecution. Since the investigation normally follows 

the elements of the -crime, the scope of the inquiry is 

limited and eaeaiy weit defined. 3 

By contrast, intelligence work involves the gathering of | 

information, not necessarily evidence. The purpose may well bd 

not to prosecute, but to thwart crime or to insure that the 

Government: has enough information to aake any future crisis 

or emergency. The aaa is necessarily broad because it 

must tell us not only the nature of the threat, but’ also whether 

the threat is imminent, the persons involved, and the 

means by which the threat will be carried out. The ability 

our anticipation of those criminal acts. Anticipation, 

| 
} 

of the Government to prevent criminal acts is dependent on 

ocld: 32969566 Page 2?1 | 
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in turn, is dependent on advance infomation, “that is, intelli- 

gence. 
- 

Certainly, reasonable people can differ on these issues. 
t 

Given the opportunity, I am confident that the continuing need 

for intelligence work can be documented to the full satisfactio 

-of the Congress. We recognize that what is at stake here is not 

the interests of the FBI, but rather the interests of every 

citizen of this country. We recognize also that the resolutioz 

of these mateers wild demand extensive and thoughtful 

deliberation by the Congress. To this end, I pledge the 

complete cooperation of the Bureau with this Committee or 

its successors in this important task. 

In any event, you have my unqualified assurance as 

Director that we will carry out both the letter and the spirit 

of such legislation es*the Congress may enact. 

That is the substance of my prepared Seavaneak: 

: I would also like to say extemporaneously that I note 

that on this panel are some gentlemen who were on the Judiciar 

Committee which ee my testimony aS ane time I was presented 

to them for candidacy as Director of the FBI. At that time 

XL took very seriously the charge which may possibly result 

in the deliberation of this Committee and of the full Senate. 

I have been well aware of the problems of the FBI since that | 
: | 

time. I have also been well aware of the capabilities of | 

the FBI to discharge those responsibilities. I don't take | 

| 
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1 them lightly. I am of sufficient experience and age that I 
a 

2.4, have pledged myself to do what is gocd and proper. I say this 

: 3 not as a seif-serving statement but in naatigss that we might 

4 place in context my position within the FBI; I could seek 

5 sanctuary and,perhaps a anes sanctuary ey saying during the 

6 period these things OGeueres 2 a2 with the local police © 

9 department in Kansas City, Missouri. Prior to that time, 

8 however, I was in the FBI. 

9 During the time I wii with the Br Sauring the time I 

10 was with the police department, I continued throughout that 

11 period a close acquaintance with and a strong affection ooo 

2 12 the FBI. 

: 13 I only want to point out that based on those years, based) 

" 14 on those observations, we have here a very fine and very’ 

15 sensitive and a very capable organization.. I feel that there 

16 is much that can still be done. I know wack we are not without 

17 1. fault. I know that from tind experiences I have had. .We 

18 Will not be completely without fault in the future. But I 

19 assure you that we look upon this inquiry, we look upon any 

20 mandate which you may feel you ene eee ean tanenneae 

, A> 
21 this.is. good and proper, andawendosnetswinzend==- I only want 

A 
| 

20 to place in your thinking the fact that you have here a 

, ' 
2% matchless organizationg creewheeh I continue to Sey, ae 

4510 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003 

mos” 
24 wnod motivated in seme of these instances, BP Choeclarme mcr Seta E 

rth cr 
Pay 
eee 

uw 
prottpemasrd I cannot justify some, “wee the motivation was o 

§ 
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best. I am not eidastae: as does a defense attorney. I am 

only putting in yOue: thinking By objective observations as. 

a citizen who is somewhat concerned about the oops of this 

Be same een: It is too precious for us to have it in 

a condition of jeopardy. 

Thank you very much. a 

The Chairman. Thank you, Director Kelley. 

I want to turn first to Senator Hart who won' ‘tk be able 

to remain through the whole morning. I think he has one 

question he would like to ask. 

Bee 32969566 Page 24 
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% 1 Senator Hart of Michigan. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
a 

: 2 Senator Mathias and I have Judiciary Committee hearings at 10:39. 

< j Have 
8 5 raw, Bayete! questions, and I'm sure they'll be 

A covered by others, Bue the ones that I have is a result of 

‘ reading your testimony and listening to it this morning, and 

6 it relates to your comment at the foot of page 10 and at the 

9% top of ll. 

8 | There you are indicating that sabi caution us about 

9 extending the court's role in the early stages of investigations 

10 suggesting that this might take us beyound the role soreness 

11 for the courts under the echatarits ea: 

g 12 Now, as you have said, aside from the so-called national 

4 13 security wiretap problem, the main focus of our discussions 

° 14 and concern has been on the possibility requiring court 

ae approval for the use of informants, informants directed to 

16 penetrate and report en some group. 

17 ao And one of the witnesses yesterday, Professor Dorsen, 

18 pointed our that really those informants are the most pervasiv 

19 type of an eavesdropping device. It is a human device. It's 

90 || really, an informant is really more intrusive on my privacy 

27 | than a bug or a tap because he can follow me anywhere. He 

20 can ask me questions to get information the government would 

23 Like to have. De eee | 

oA Now, we certainly involve the courts in approval cf the 

25 wiretaps for physical searches with the intent of the drafters } 

HW 55124 fbocTd:32989566 Page 25 | 
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of the Constitution to have a neutral third party magistrate 

screen use of certain investigative pechniedes: And the 

eeeiaee ae such:a technique. He cublec ious sort of like a 

general warrant, and I don't see why requiring court approval 

would violate the role envisaged for the courts. | 

and as I leave, I would like to get your reactions i 

my feelings. | 

Mr. Kelley. I do not feel that shies 1s any use of the 

| informant ine«bmtmusden, which is to this extent objectionable. 

ios BEE BPPRBBED 
Ted oh SenO fer C ONES Cee DO CNneapprozeds, Fre concept of the informant 

by numerous court decisions. 

Let us go dewn not to the moral connotation of the use 

cher, 

of the informant.,,,, © | : 

‘vw 
I think, as in many cases, “ehret is a matter of balance. 

adtbbEetl PS 
PASreacdklVewids the use of the informant, T sthimieentheamprotect ion 

Ofer her Pag titT OP “th6 HV be EinlEO “benv Linn Zeay You have within 

Atl BD 
the Constitution certain ‘grants, ane ee eee eae 

% 

i eaemene eee eee ose rights. The iene wm search and 

COD ASX 
You have only very few ways of solving Gavi) VOM alae <s 

RE OLY 
Sel ieee Which, wofccourse,,.icantty eCuunreasconrablesgensutenonest 

a 8} 
theles Sres¥OU-hawe-the, right. 

I think that were we to lose the right of the informant, 
| 

we would lose to a great treasure our capability of doing our 

job. 

Now, I'm not arguing with you, Senator, that it is not an 

HW 35124 id ctueaasaaee Page 26 
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unusual procedure. I'm not even going to say that it is not 

an intrusion, because it is. But it has to be one, I think 

thaterseby virtue .of the benefits must be counted. | 

We don't like to use it. We don't like the problems that 

are attendant. We take great care. 

Now, you say about the court heving Bessibs rey taking 

jurisdiction over them and guiding. I think that possibly we 

could present the matter to the court but hae are they going 

to do inaokas as monitoring their effort? Are they going to 

have to follow it all the way through? 

Also, there is; of ae se: urgency in the other contacts. | 

Must the court be contacted for each and approval of the court 

given for each contact? | | 

There are a great many problems insofar as administration 

of it. | 

I frankly feel, and again, all I can do is give you my 

idea -~ I frankly feel that there is a itdiainokane control ove 

the informants as we now exercise it today. Yes, there are 

going to be some who will get beyond our Senge but this 

is going to happen no matter what you do. 

Senator Hart of Michigan. Well, I appreciate your 

reaction. 

I was not suggesting that there is consideration here -to 

prohibit informants. I was refiecting a view that I felt and 

hold that the use cf an informant does require some balance, as 

ee a heal a haeneieiateel 
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you ‘vourself said, and I would be more comfortable with a 

inane party making a eee as to whether the intrusion is 

warranted ay kis particular siveuntenes: But I do understand . 

your position. 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

The Chairman. Thank you, Senator Hart. 

(Senator Hart leaves the hearing room.) 

The Chairman. Senator Baker, do you have questions? 

Senator Baker. Mr. Chairman, thank you very much. 

Mr. Kelley, I have a qreat respect -.for you and your 

organization and I personally regret that the organization is 

in political distress, but we've both got to recognize that 

it is, along with other agencies and departments of the 

government. 

I.think you probably would agree with me that even though 

that is extraordinarily unpleasant and in many respects 

unfortunate, that it also has a plus side. That is, it gives 

uS an indication of ae future direction and the opportunity, 

at least, to improve the level of competency and service. of 

the government itself. 3 . = 

With that hopeful note, would you be agreeable’ then to 

volunteering for me any suggestions you have on how to improve 

a 

the responsiveness of the Federal Bureau of investigation, or if 

indeed, for any other law enforcement agencies of the governmeni?, 

to the Congress, to the Attorney General, to the President, and 

ocrTd: 32969566 Page 26 
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beyond that, would you give me any sugyestions you have on 

how you would provide the methods, the access, the documents, 

the records, the authority, for the Congress to perform its 

essential, I believe, essential oversight responsibility to 

see that these functions, these delicate functions are being 

undertaken properly? 

And before you answer, let me tell you two or three things 

I am concerned about. | 

Tt hasn’t been long ago that the FBI Director was or 

even confirmed by the Senate of the United States. I believe 

you are the first one és be confirmed hy the Senate of the 

United States. I think that is a movement in the right 

direction. I think the FBI has taken on a stature grat? and 

additional importance that requires it to have closer supervision 

and scrutiny by us. 

AG. the: Same time, i 2ather doubt that we can become 

involved in the daily relatisnship between you and the Attorney 

General. 

Therefore, I tend to believe that the Attorney General 

needs to be more directly involved in the operations of the 

FBI. 

I-would appreciate any comments on that. 

Second, I rather paireve that major decisions of the 

intelligence community and the FBI sient to be in writing, so 

that the Congress can, if it needs to in the future, take a 

atte, Pi am Start tire 

~ 
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Look at these Seti shee and the process by which they were 

made to deere that you are or you are not performing your 

services diligently. | 

I don't think you can have oversight Wless-a0u have 

access to records, and in many cases records don't exist 

and in some cases the people who made those decisions are now 

departed and in other cases you have conflicts. 

How would you suqgest: then that you improve the quality 

of service of your agency? How would you propose that you 

increase the opportunity for oversight of the Congress of the 

the level of law enforcement in the essential activity that 

is required? 

Mr. Kelley. I would possibly be repetitious in answering 

this Senator, but I’ get a great deal of pleasure from telling 

what I think is necessary and what I hope that I have followed, 

(one which is beyond my control, but which I think is very 

enn that the position of Directoy?) tre one to which 

great a eaneion anew be sain in choosing the an, whe—wirls= 

Sse esa eet ea: . . : a 

I feel that the Judiciary pianists. at least in going 

over me, did a pretty good job. I feel that it is most 

necessary that care be taken that his philosophy, his means 

of management, his facility to adapt to change, his tendency 

toward consulting with other members of the official family, 

PoclTd: 329689566 Page 30 
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that he be willing to, for example, go through oversight wie. 

no reticence, and that I think that he ears be chosen very 

carefully. 

I think further that he should be responsible for those 

matters which indicate iaiankets or illegality. 

Senator Baker. Could you stop for just a second? Who 

does he work for? Does the Director, in your view, work for 

the President of the United ee eae: for the AeeoenSy General, 

for the Justice Department, for the Executive Branch? 

Who does the executive of the FBI, the Director of the 

FBI, be responsible to, who should he be reaponsibie to? 

Mr. Kelley. Gurisdictionally; to the Attorney General, 

but I think this is such an important field of influence that 

it is not at all unlikely that we can expand it to the 

judiciary, the legislatsue, and, of course, we are under the 

Attorney General. 

Senator Baker. Do you have any sroblems with the idea 

of the President of the United States calling the Director of 

the FBI and asking foe performance of a particular task? 

Does that gigs you any difficulty? Or do you think that 

the relationship hetwean the FBI Director and the President 

is such that that is desirable, or should it he conduited 

eouah the Attorney General? 

Mr, celley. I think it should be in the great majority 

of the cases conduited through the Attorney General. There 
ocld: 32969566 Page 31 
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38 1 nas been traditionally some acceptance of the fact that if 

: a the President wants to see and talk with the Director, he 

3 5 may do so, call him directly. | 

4 It has been my practice in such an event to thereafter 

5 report to the Attorney General, whoever it might be, that I 

6 have been called over, and I Ziseussedmandmwasmtokdymein debhees: 

¢ was revealed in full to theny UHHIE GsAS DéSCUSS Es é 

8 Senator Baker. I suppose we could pass a ‘statute that 

9 says the President has to go through the Attorney General, 

LO although I eatnee sue sear it would be a little presume ous: 

, Li But to go the next step, do you think it is necessary 

Le for the pursuit of effective oversight on the part of the 

E 13 Congress, to have some sort of document written, or at least 

14 some sort of account of a Presidential order or an order of 

15 the Attorney General given to a Director of the PBI? 

16. Do you think that these things need eS be handled Ge 

: 17 a -more Pomel way? 

18 Mr. Kelley. Personally, it would be my practice in 
© | 

. 19 the event-I receive such an order, to request that it be 
J 

: 

¢ 20 documented. This 1s a protection as well as a clarificationy 

: 21 As to whether or not it should be placed as part of legislation 

7 22 ft frankly would like to reserve that for some ee considera- 

: 29 tion. 

: 24 I don't know whether it would be, but I think that it 

25 can be worked very easily. 
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Senator Baker, Mr. Kelley, Attorney General Levi, I 

believe, has already established some sort of agency or 

function within the Department that is serving as the equivalent,. 

I suppose,. of an Inspector General of the Justice Department, 

including the FBI. 

Are you familiar with the ne that Mr. Levi has 

taken in that respect? i think he calls it the Office of 

~ 

Professional Responsibility. . : 

Mr. Kelley. Yes, sir, I'm artes with it. 

senator Baker. Do you have any comment on that? WLi1l 

you give us any observations as to whether you think that 

Will be useful, helpful, or whether it will not be useful or 

helpful, how it affects the FBI, how you visualize your 

relationship to it in the future? 

Mr. Kelley. I don't object to this, which is to some 

extent an oversight within the Department of Justice under the 

Attorney General. 

Frankly, it just seca dale: I have not sensitised it 

completely, but to the general concept, yes, I very definitely 

subscribe, 
an 

Senator Baker. How would you feel about extending that 

concept of government-wide operation, a national Inspector 

General who is involved with an oversight of all of the 

agencies of government as they interface with the Constitutionally 

protected rights of the individual citizen? Would you care 

| 
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to comment on -that, or would you rather save that for a while? 

Mr..Kelley. I would like to eeuerga hee one. 

Senator sakee. I‘m not surprised. Would you think about 

it and let us know what you think about it? 

Mr. Kelley. I will.. 

Senator Baker. All right. Mr. Chairman, thank you very 

much. 

The Chairman. Senator Huddleston. 

seenater Huddleston. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Kelley, you icin. lk page 4 the conditions that 

existed when much of the aeuce that we-have talked about during! 

this inquiry occurred, indicating that the people within the 

See 

Bureau felt like they were doing what was enpeened of them 

by the President, by the Attorney Seneeni sane Congress and 

she Saeni6 of the United States. 

Does not this suggest that there has es a reaction 

there to prevailing attitudes that night have existed in the 

country because of certain circumstances rather than any 

clear and specific direct ipetuuoeicns that might have been 

received from proper Suaneete tess And if that is the case, 

is it possible in developing this eaeeee: this guideline, 

to provide for that kind ee eeeeies instruction? 

Mr. Kelley. I think so, yes. I think that they can 
| 

logicaily be incorporated and that ~~ 

senator Huddleston. You can see there would be a continuinc 

pocTaA: 32969566 Page 34 
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Ll 1 danger if any agency is left to simply react to whatever the 
© 
N 

2 a attitudes may hbe.at a specific time in this country because -- 

3 5 Mr. Kelley. Senator; I don't contemplate it mrgkt belAiGem= 

| ss Hiner og 
4 a continuing danger, but it” certainly would be. a very acceptable 

5 guidepost whereby we can, in the event such a need seems 

6 to arise, know what we can do. 

7 Genator Huddleston. Well, in pursuing the area which 

8 Senator Hart was discussing, that is whether or not we can 

9 provide sufficient guidelines would replace a decision by the 

LO court in determining what action might be proper and specific- 

llij} ally in protecting individual's rights, can't we also 

i2 ji! provide the restrictions and guidelines and the various 

13 techniques that might be used? 
WARD & PAUL 

14 | For instance, supposing we do. establish the fact, as 

LS has already Seen Gone, that informants are necessary and 

16 desirable. How do we keep that informant operating within the 

17 || proper limits so that he,in fact,is not violating individual 

18 rights? 

19 Mr. Kalley. Well, of course, much of the reliance must 

20 be placed on the agent and-the supervision of the FBI to assure 

21 that there is no infringement of rights. 

2° senator Huddleston. But this is an mt we've gotten 

23 || into some difficulty in the past. We have assumed that the 

24 || particular action was necessary, that there was a present 
419 First Strect, S.£., Washington, D.C. 20003 

25 1 threat that some intelligence programs should be initiated, but | 
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in miany cases it has gone beyond what would appear to have been 

necessary to have addressed the original threat. 

How do we keep within the proper balance there? 

Mrs Relley. Well, .actually, it's just about like any 

other offense. - It is ss invasion of the other individual's 

right and it is by an officer and an FBI a an officer. 

There's the possibility of criminal prosecution against him. 

This is one which I think might flow if “he counsels” 

the informant. 

Now, insofar as his inability to control the informant, 

z don't .suppose that would warrant prosecution, but there is 

Still supervisory control over that agent and over that 

informant by insisting that control is aenabiads on a continuinl 

basis. 

Senator Huddleston. It brings up an interesting point 

as to whether or not ee enforcement agency ought to be 

very alert to any law violations of its own members or anyone 

else. 

Tf a White House official asks the FBI or someone to do 

something unlawful, the question seems to me to occuf as to 

whether or not that is not a violation that should be reported 

by the FBI. 

Mr. Kelley. T think that any violation which comes to 

our attention should either be handled by us or the prover 

authority. 
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a Senator Huddleston. But that hasn't been the case - 

past. 7 | ih : at 

Mr. Kelley. Well, I don't know what Won 'ee referring 

to put I would think your statement is eueee | 

Senator Huddleston. Well, we tiated tina evidence 

‘of unlawful activity taking place in various peeaeeee that 

have been undertaken, which certainly were not brought to 

‘light willingly by the FBI or by other law enforcement agencies 

The question that I'm really concerned about is as _ 

we attempt to draw a guideline aaa charters that would give 

the Agency the best flexibility catehes may need, a wide 

range of threats, how do we control what happens eas each 

| 

of those actions to keep them from going beyond what 

was intended to begin with? 

cld:32989566 Page 3? 
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< ® a ¢ Ce a 1 Mr. Kelley. You're still speaking of informants‘ 
g S ; 

g a "4 Senator Huddleston. Not only informants but’ the agents 

7 5 themselves as they go into surveillance, wiretaps, or whatever 

4 intelligence gathering techniques. 

ht 20 The original thrust of my question was, even though we 

6 may be able to provide guidelines of a broad nature, how do 

7 we control the techniques that might be used, that in! themseivds 

8 might be used, that in themselves might be a serious violation 

9 of the rights. 

LO Mr. Kelley. Well, first, I don't know whether it's 

ee germane to your question but I do feel that it should be pointed 
J: 

12 out that the association to, the relationship between the 

: 13 informant and his agent handler is a very confidential oné, 

| L4 and I doubt very seriously whether we could have any guide- 

15 lines, where there might be an extension of any monitors here 

16 because thereby you do have a Sa cacal al daa that relationship 

1? Insofar as the activities of agents, informants’ or others | 

18 ach waycse illegal, we have on many occasions learned of 

19 violations of the law on the part of ‘informants, and either 

20 prosecuted ourselves, through the reporting of it to the } 

410 lest Street, S.E., Washington, 0.C. 20003 

21 United States Attorney, or turned it over to the local — 

22 We have done this on many a time, many occasions. Insofar 

25 ae our own personnel, we have an internal organization, the 

24 Inspection Division, which reviews this type of activity, and 

25 if there be any violations yes, no question about it, we would 
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pursue it to the point of prosecution. 

Senator Huddleston. But it could be helped by periodic 

iets: 

‘Mr. Kelley. We do, on an annual basis, review the 

activities of our 59 ania through that same Inspection 

Division, and they have a clear charge to 8 over this as well 

as other matters. 

Senator Huddleston. Mr. Kelley, you pointed: out the 

aifference in the approaches when gathering intelligence, in 

gathering evidence after a sete has been committed. 

Would there be any advantage, or would it be feasible to 

attempt to separate these functions eiehin the oe in the 

departments, for inetance: with not gine a mixing of 

gathering intelligence and gathering evidence? Are the techni ues 

definable and different? ? 

Mr. Kelley. Senator, I think they are compatible. [I 

see no objection to the way that they are now being handled 

on a management basis. I think, as a matter of fatt, it is 

a very fine association whereby the intelligence, stemming as 

-—, 

it does from a substantive violation, is a natural complement. 

Senator Huddleston. Now, another area, the FBI furnishes 

information to numerous government agencies. 

is this properly restricted and controlled at ne present 

time in your judgment as to just who can ask the FBI for 

information, what kind of information they can ask for, and 
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probably even more importantly, what restrictions can be put 

on the use of that information once it has been supplied by 

the FBI? 0 pment mee | 

Mr. Kelley. I think so, Senator. 

Senator Huddleston. You think there are proper restrictiacns 

now? 

Mr. Kelley. I don't know that we can ourselves judge 

in all cases whether or not there is good sd ieurer arene Yeaso} 

for an Agency to inquixy’ I think that there should be a 

very close delineation by the agencies as to what they're 

going to ask for, but I think that we do have sufficient rules 

that at least to us we are satisfied. 

Senator Huddleston. You're confident that the information 

your agency supplies is not being misused, to the Beets 

of the rights cf any individuals. 

Mr. Kelley. Senator, I'm only confident in what I 

do myself. I would say that I am satisfied. 

Senator Huddleston. I was wondering whether some 

inclusion ought to be made in whatever charter'is made as -‘to 

who specifically can request, what limits ought to be placed 

get it. 

Mr. Kelley. Yes. 

Senator Huddleston. I have some concern about the fact 

j 
{ 

I 

on what the request, and what they can do with it after they 

that in intelligence gathering, you gather, you are just 

j 
PocTa: 32969566 Page 40 
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bound ‘to gather a great deal of tro eiweiohabend some 

individual that is useless as far as the intent of the intelli-~ 

gence gathering is é6neerned. but might be in some way embarras 

Sing or harmful to the individual, whether or not there's any 

effort to separate this kind of information out of a person's 

file that is really initiated for a purpose, for a specific 

purpose unrelated to this information. 

Is there any effort, or could any direction be given to 

doing that? 

Mr. Kelley. We would be very happy to work under the 

- guidelines or rules or anything else to purge material which 

is extraneous, irrelevant, or for any other reason objection- 

able. omens ene | om 
Senator Huddleston. And how about the length of time 

that these files are kept in the agency? 

Mr. Kelley. We are willing to work ani that framework, 

a «ome 

too. : 

Senator Huddleston. I think that might be done. 

Now, I think in developing the chain of command, so to 

speak, it certainly would be very difficult to prevent the 

resident of the United States from calling up the head of 

the FBI or anyone else and discussing any law enforcement 

problem he might so desire, and perhaps even give direction 

to the agency. 

But how about that? What about White House personnel 

EY Fe rN ' 
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n4ep 
who might also be inclined to call the Director and ask him 

to do specific things? 

Could ane be some clearcut understanding as to whether 

or not the Director would be obligated to undertake any such 

project, that just anybody at the White House might suggest? 

Mr. Kelley. It‘s very aes to me that any request must | 

come from Mr. Buchen's office, and that it be, in any case, 

wherein it is a request for action, that it be followed with 

a letter so requesting. 

This has come up before, during the Watergate hearings, 

take care that you just don't follow the request of some 

Senator Huddleston. Just one more question about 

techniques, aside from the ‘ik Hei Rac of authority on broad 

projects undertaken. 

Would it be feasible from time to time in a Congressional 

oversight committee, would be able to discuss with the Departm 

with the Bureau various ee chaicuse So that they could have 

some input as to whether or not these actions are consistent . 

with the overail guidelines, to start with, and consistent _ 

with the very protections? | 

Mr. Kelley. Senator, I have already said.to.the 

oversight committee of the Senate that so far as I can now 

see, the only thing that would be withheld is the identity of 

ocld: 32969566 Page 42 
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: 1 informants. We'll discuss techniques, we'll discuss our 
g | 

é 2 present activities. I think this is the only way that we can 

i 5 exchange our opinions and get accomplished what you want to 

4. scesapiish and what I want to accomplish. 

.o senator Huddleston. [I feel that is an important aspect 

6 of it because even though you have a charter which gives broad 

7 direction for all the guidelines and to the types cf projects 

8 that -enter into it, if .we don't get down to Seas. such 

9 things as how intelligence is to be collected, how evidence 

10 ae to be collected, what is Signe agese it is collected, this 

ae type of thing, it seems to me we are leaving a wide gap 
r 

< 12 again for the Bureau to assume that it has total instruction 
— 

t 13 and total permission to move in a certain direction and go 
> 

14 beyond what is intended or what was authorized. 

15 Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and Mr. Director. 

16 The Chairman. Senator Goldwater? 

aes ey, Senator Goldwater. Mr. Kelley, as part of the FBI 

18 electronic surveillance of Dr. King, several tapes of 

g 19 specific conversations, and later a eonpasive King tape were | 

é 20 produced. -. 
6 

z 21 Are these tapes still in the possession of the FBI? 

a“ D2 Me. Kelley. Yes, sir. | 

: 23 Senator Goldwater. Have they been reviewed by you? | 

C aa] _ Mr. Kelley. No, sir. | 
< 

25 | Senator Goldwater. Have they been reviewed by any of an 1 

AW 35124 cld:32989566 Page 43 | 
L v : 3 



LO 

Li 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

1? 

18 

19 

20 

al 

Re 

RO 

RA 

25 
HW 55124 DocId: 329899566 Page 44 

2484 

staff, to your knowledge? 

Mr. Kelley. Senator, I think et they have been reviewed. 

I know that at least some have reviewed it within the area of 

this particular section. There has been no review of them 

Since I came to the FBI, I can tell you that. 

Senator Goldwater. Would these tapes be available to 

the Committee if ae Committee felt they would like to hear 

them? 

Mr. Kelley. This, Senator Goldwater, is a matter which i 

of, as I said before, some delicacy, and there would have to 

be a discussion of this in an executive session. 

The Chairman. I might say in that connection that the 

Committee staff gave some consideration to this matter and - 

decided that it would compound the original error for the 

staff to review the tapes, because that would be a still 

further invasion of privacy, and so the staff refrained from 

insisting on obtaining the tapes, believing that it was 

unnecessary, and quite possibly improper, in order to get at 

what.we needed to know about the King case. 

So the staff did refrain, and for that reason the issue 

never came to a head. I just wanted to lay that information 

before the Senator. 

Senator Goldwater. I realize that's a prerogative of 

the staff, but it's also the prerogative of the Committee Lf4 

and I'm not advocating it, if we wanted to hear them to 
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ourselves whether Mr. Hoover was off on a wild goose chase 

or whether there was, in effect, some reason. Again, I am 

not advocating it, I am- merely putas a question. They would 

be available if the Committee took a vote to hear them and 

decided on it. 

Mr. Kelley. I don't think it would be within apeaets- 

Giction to respond to this, Senator. It would have to be the 

Attorney General. 

Senator Goldwater. I see. 

Now, are these tapes and other products of surveillance 

routinely retained even after an individual ceased to be a 

target of eters 

Mr. Kelley. They ae retained usually for ten years: 

Senator Goldwater. Ten years. 

Mr. Kelley. Yes, Sir 

Senator Goldwater. What is the future value, if any, 

to the Bureau of retaining such information? 

Mr. Kelley. If there be guidelines that set out a 

destruction or erasure,we will abide by it. We will, on those 

occasions where we think that matters might come up within 

that period of time which may need the reténtion of them, we 

will express our opinion at that time, but other than that 

we would be guided by guidelines. 

Senator Goldwater. Is it your view that legitimate 

law enforcement needs should outweigh privacy considerations 

Cld:32989566 Page 45 
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with respect to retention ae such information, or do we need 

the clear guidelines on the destruction of these materials . 

when the ieee eieneion purposes for which they were collected 

have been served? 

Mr. Kelley. We feel that there should be a good close 

look at the retention of ee and we would,of course,like 

to have an input. But we welcome consideration of this. 

Senator Goldwater. That is all I have, Mr. enadenies. Thank 

you very much. 

The Chairman. Thank you, Senator. 

Senator Mondale? } 

Senator Mondale. Mr. Director, it seems to me that the 

most crucial question before the Congress is to accept thé 

invitation of the FBI to draw Congressionally imposed lines, 

limits of authority so the FBI will know clearly what you can 

and cannot do, so you’ will not be subject to Later judgments, 

and the question is, where should that line be drawn? 

As you know, in 1924 when the FBI was siiilieale: and 

Mr. Stone later became the Chief Justice, he drew the line at 

criminal law enforcement. He said that never again will we 

go beyond the authority-imposed upon us to get into political 

che‘ OP PAS A SSA, SPE NN eS LS ACA SN CO eS ideas. We will stay in the area of law enforcement. 

Would you not think it makes a good deal of sense to 

draw the guidelines in a way that your activities are 

restricted to the enforcement of the law, investigations of 
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crime, investigations of conspiracies to eonmit crime rather 

than to leave this very difficult to define and control area | 

of political ideas? : 

Mr. Kelley. I don't know whether I understand your last 

statement of involving the area of political ideas. I-say tha ) 

I feel that, certainly we should be vested and should continue 

in the field of criminal investigations as an investigatory 

objective. These are conclusions, of seueie, atte eee based 

on statutes in the so-called security field, national or 

foreign. 

These are criminal eibteelone.. I. feel that they should 

be in tandem. I feel,.having worked many years in this | 

atmosphere, Pracaved have more ears and eyes and you have. 

more personnel working together, covering the same fields. . 

TI do not think there should be : eee of the intelligenc 

matters, because it is a concomitant. It naturally flows 

from the investigation of the security matters and the 

criminal. 

Senator Mondale. Mr. Kelley, what: Mr. Stoneseaia was ~* 

this, that the Bureau of investigation is not concerned 

with political or other opinions of individuals.. It is 

concerned only with such conduct as is forbidden .by the laws } 

these limits, it is dangerous to proper administration of 

of the United States. When the police system goes beyond 

justice and human liberty. | 
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$ ‘i Do.you object to that definition? 
e 
o 

3 2 Mr. Kelley. I think that life has become much more 
< . 

5 3 sophisticated and we have added to the so-called policeman's 

4 area of concern some matters which were probably not as important 

5 at that time. I think that the fact that the FBI has been in 

6 touch with the security investigations and the gathering of 

” intelligence is something which has seoved to be at times 

8 troublesome and given us great concern, but it is a viable, 

9 productive procedure. 

10 I don't know what Mr. Stone was thinking of oe 

11 of this” course, but I can tell you about the procedure: today. 

: 12 Senator Mondale. You see, I think you recognize, if 

13 that further step is taken, as you're recommending here, that 

° 14 at that point it becomes so difficult to guarantee, and in 

15 fact, in my Opinion, impossible to guarantee that we won't 

16 see a recurrence of some of the abuses. eink wat ‘ve seen in 

| 17 the past, and I don't know how you establish any kind of 

18 meaningful oversight .on a function as nebulous as the one 

: 19 you've just defined. | 

é 20 If the FBI possesses the authority. to investigate 

21 ideas that they consider to be threats to. this nation's © 

3 aa! security, particularly in the light of the record that we have| 

a 23 seen how that definition can be stretched to include practi- 

24 cally everybody, including moderate civil rights leaders, | 

" 25 war Gissenters and so on, how on earth can standards be Paves 
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that would provide any basis for oversight? 

How can you, from among other thangs: Be protected from 

criticism later on that you exceeded your suehorite or didn't 

do something that some politician tried to pressure you into 

doing? ; | 

Mr. Kelley. It migne well be, Senator, that ten years 

from now a Director of the FBI will be seated here and will be 

criticized for going that which today is construed as very 

acceptable. 

Senator Mondale. Correct. And I have great sympathy 

for the predicament the FBI finds itself in. 

Mr. Kelley. And the Director. 

.. Senator Mondale. And the Director especially, and that is 

why I think it's in the interest of the FBI to get these lines 

as sharply defined as possible, so that when you are pressured 

to do things, or when, after the fact, people with good 26/20 

hindsight can criticize you or the Bureau, that you can say 

well, here are the standards that you gave us, and they an 

ally say this, and that is your answer. We have to live by 

the law. If we don't Gefine it specifically,it seems to me 

that these excesses could reoccur, because I don't think it's 

possible to define them, and the FBI is inevitably going to 

be kicked back and forth, depending on personal notions of what 

you should have done. 

Don't you fear that? 

pCTd 232989566 Page 49 
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Mr. Kelley. Not too much, Senator. I think we learned a 

great lesson by virtue of javergaee: the revelations ena have 

come up as a result of this Committee's iauietes: the fact 

that I think that we have a different type of spirit today 

in the Bureau, the fact that, as I said before, you came in, 

that I think the Bureau is a matchléss organization, and they 

are eager to do that which is vital and proper, and the fact 

that we are getting a number of very fine young people in the 

organization, people of the other ethnic backgrounds than we 

had years ago. I think there is a greater understanding in 

the Bureau today of what is the proper type of conduct. 

We may not be able to project this on all occasions, 

because we mee eaquace this with the need and with our 

experience, but if the precise guidelines be the goal, you're 

going to have trouble. If, on the other hand, there cw 

flexibility, I think that we can work very well within those 

guidelines. 

Senator Mondale. I think, as you know, I don't think 

there is a better trained or higher professionally qualified 

Law enforcement organization in the world than the FBI. I 

think we all agree it is superb. But the problem has been, 

from time to time, that when you go beyond the area of 

enforcing the law into the area of political ideas, that you 

are subject to and in fact you leave the criminal field, you 

get into politics, And that is where, it seems to me, that th 

PocTda: 32969566 Page 450 
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6 1 great controversy exists, and where you are almost inevitably 
o 
N 

g 2 going to be subjected to fierce criticism in the future, no : : 

5 3 matter how you do.it. Once you get into politics, you get 

4. into trouble. 

15 Mr. Kelley. I agree to that, and I point out that in almost 

6 || every branch of the government and in every part, as a matter 

7 of fact, every segment of our society, there are some who deviate — 

8 from the normal course. I feel that within the Bureau there is 

9 less likelihood of this to happen, and I think that working 

10 || with you we can at least make some achievements that will be 

11 | significant. 
2 : qui Li* Ae 
< 12 Now, whether eB lasting, I don't thinieeso’, but I 
& . 
t 13 think we've made a good start. 
Ss 

14 | Senator Mondale. In your speech in Montreal on August 

15 9th, you said we must be willing to surrender a small measure 

16 | Of our liberties to preserve the great bulk of them. 

17 Which liberties did you have in mind? 

18 Mr. Kelley. Well, of course, this speech has been mis- 

19 understood many, many times. 

20 Senator Mondale. Well, I want you to have a chance to 

21 clear it up. st tae 

29 Mr. Kelley. All that was intended here was a restatement 

93 || of the approach which the courts historically have used in 

24 resolving most issues of Constitutional importance, and its 
410 First Street, S.E£., Washington, 0.C. 20003 
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95 || recognition that rights are not susceptible to absolute 
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protection. It's a matter of balance. Even in the Fourth 

Amendment, for example, which protects the right of privacy, it 

A> . Of, 
does not prohibit searches and seizures. I nee 1t only 

| “A 

| refers to those. that are unreasonable. 

I came from the police fiedd. What is more restrictive 

to more people than traffic regulation? But what would be | 

more chaotic is of you did not have traffic regulation. We 

do have to , in Sener to a in the complexities and 

intricacies of today's life, have to give up some of our 

rights. 

Some may construe this as an extravagant statement. If 

is qs, I wish to say that I only was pointing out that there 

has to be a batenee: =) : 

senator Mondale. So that when you say we have to give os 

up some liberties, or as you Seam ata. some eianes: what you 

Mean ~~ let me ask, Let me scratch: that and ask again, you 

have to give up some ‘Rights. Which rights would you have us 

give up? : 

Mr. Kelly. Well, under the Fourth Amenament you would 

have the right for search and seizure. | - 

Senator Mondale. You wouldn't give up the Fourth Amend- 

ment right. 

Mr. Kelley. Ohy no not the right. 

senator Mondale. What right do you have in mind? 

Mr. Keliey. The right to be free from search and seizu: 

Pocld: 32989566 Page 52 
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Senator Mondale. There's no such right in the Consti- 

tution. You can have such seizures, but they must be reasonabl ; 

under court warrant. 

» Did you mean to go beyond that? 

Mr. Kelley. MThat’s right. 

senator Mondale. That you should be able to go beyond 

that? 

Mr. Kelley. No, no. I do not mean that we should ever 

go beyond a Gsnseieueional right guarantee. 

Senator Mondale. Well, all you say, Mr. Kelley, that 

that sentence might have been inartful in your speech? 

Mr. Kelley. I said that if it was misunderstood, I 

made a mistake, because I should never make a statement which ¢4- 

yes, it was inartful. 

Senator Mondale. I think I know about your record in 

law enforcement well enough to tell you that I think you were 

saying something different, that it was taken to mean something 

different than I think you intended. 

What you are saying is that in ‘ine exercise of your law 

enforcement powers, the rights of individuais is determined 

by the laws and the courts, but the courts, in the handling 

of those issues, have to balance rights and other values. 

That’s what you're essentially saying, is that correct? 

Mr. Kelley. Senator, I ought to have you write my 

speeches so that I don't have any misunderstandings. r sa 

PocTaA: 32969566 Page 53 
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¢ 1 understand that to be at the time anything that was unusual. 
e ; 
Oo 

° 2 || I have to admit that maybe I made a mistake. 
< ° 

2 Senator Mondale. What you are saying in effect is that 
& 

A in effect, the rights: of the American people can be determined 

“5 not by the Director of the FBI but by the courts and by the 

6 law. 

% You meant that. 

8 Mr. Kelley. Indeed, yes,'sir. 

9 Senator Mondale. All right. 

a 10 Thank you.. 
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The Chairman. Senator Hart. 

Senator of Colorado. Mr. Kelley, in response to 

a question by Senadtyr Mondale, one.of his first sine Seas about 

laying down guidelines, it seems to me what you were saying was 

we could work together. ‘That is to say the Bureau and the 

Congress, lay down aueeiass that would not unreasonably 

hamper you from investigations of crime control in the 

country. 

But I think implicit in his question was also an area 

that you didn't respond to, and that is how do you, what kind 

of guidelines do you lay eas protect you and the Bureau 

from political passa, the misuse of the Bureau by political 

figures, particularly in the White House? : 

And we've had indications that at least two of your 

predecessors, if not more, obviously were corrupted and Mr. 

Gray was under great pressure from the White House to use 

the facilities of the Bureau and their’ capabilities to .accomplish 

Die 
some pritif~eal end. 

Well, it seems to me you were arguing in favor of fewer 

restrictions so you sonia get on with your job, but that is 

not what Senator Mondale and the-rest of us are interested ing 

What -Kindof restrictions can we lay down to protect you 

from political pressures? I'd be interested in that sign of the, 

coin, if you would. | 

Mr. Kelley. I would welcome any guidelines which would 

tocTd: 32989566 Page 55 
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protect me or any successor from this type of thing. I think 

that would be splendid. I have not eegtedea the guidelines 

as prepared to the present date by the Department. It might 

be that they are well defined in there. But I welcome any 

consideration of such directives, 

Senator Hart of Colorado. Do-you think this is a problen 

Mr. Kelley. No, sir, not with me. 

Senator Hart of Colorado. Do you think that it has been 

a problem for the people that preceded you? 

Mr. Kelley. ZI think so. 

Senator Hart bP elevads.. And that's a problem the 

Congress ought to address? 

Mr. Kelley. I think so. - 

Senator Hart of Colorado. ‘The Committee received a 

letter from the Department of Justice a couple of days, the 

Assistant Attorney General asking our cooperation in carrying 

out the investigation or their efforts to review the investi- 

gation conducted by the FBI into the death of Martin Luther 

King, Jr., in order to determine sions that investigation 

snould be re-opened, They asked our seocevaxton, they asked 

for our transcripts, the testimony before the Committee, all 

material provided to the Committee by the FBI which relates 

to Dr. King and the Southern Christian Leadership Conference. 

I guess my question is this: Why is the Justice Depart- 

ment asking this Comnittee for FBI files? 

HW 55124 ocld: 32989566 Page 56 
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a 3 1 Mr. Kelley. I don't think they're asking for files. 
o ‘ 

N : : 

g 2 I think they're asking for what testimony was given by 
© 

: 

a ~ a f . 

£ ~ witnesses whose testimony has not been given up. TI don't know. 

4 Senator Hart of Colorado. I'll quote it. “And all 

o material provided to the Committee by the FBI which relates 

6 to Dr. King and the Southern Christian Leadership Conference, 

7 I repeat the question. Why is the nushhee Department 

8 asking this Committee for material seated to us by the 

9 || FBI? 

LO Mr. Kelley. Frankly, I don't know. Do you mind if I 

ll just ask -- 
at 
» . 

a 12 (Pause) 
a 

Q : " - 

e 13 -- Mr. Kelley. I am informed, and I knew this one. ; 
2 

L4 Everything that was sent to you was sent through them. Did 

15 they have a copy 1862 Yves, they had a retained 0b. I 

16 don't know why. oe 

L? Senator Hart of Colorado. So there's nothing you 

18 eer Wevenatds not available to the Justice aciatiaahe 

19 Mr, Roney: That's right. 

20 Senator Hart of Colorado. And you can't account for why 

a1 an official o£ the Justice Department would ask this Committee 

22 for your records? 

23 Mr, Kelley. No, Six. | ee : ob 

a4 Senator Hart of Colorado. You released a statement on 
410 First Street, S.E., Washington, 0.C. 20003 

25 November the 18th of '74 regarding the FBI's. counterfintelligen 
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program and you said you made a detailed study of COTNTELPRO 

activities and reached the following conclusions, and I quote: 

"The purpose of these counterfintelligence programs was 

to prevent dangerously and potentially deadly acts against 

individuals, organizations and institutions both Sues 

and private across the United State 

Now we had an FBI informant in the other day before this 

8 Committee and he stated he told the FBI on a number of. 

"0 occasions he planned violent acts against black neople in 

LO groups. And yet, he said few, if any, instances in which the 

Jl | PBI actually prevented violence from taking place. 
oJ 
pa : 

: 12 How does his testimony square with your statement that 
Q a thee. 4, 7 . 
< 15 I have quoted? : 

14 Mr. Kelley. It doesn't, and I don't know if any of 

whichare® shat 
15 | his Star acueetconeT ey to what we have saidais the truth. 

16 We don't subscribe to onset he Said. We have checked into it 

L7 and we know of no instances where, for example ,p 15-minutes shery 

octurrech ANA We failed to +ake Some action. e 
18 AN Gent Harte CO feet Din Guhasmocen~=substantiated . 

oe . 

3 19 Senator Hart of Colorado. You're saying the testimony 
Y 

a 20 he gave us under oath was not accurate? = Lo 

: a1 Mx. Kelley: Rigi | 

4 De Senator Hart of Colorado. You also said in that statemen 

5 RS and I quote: "I want to assure you that Director Hoover did | 

: 24 not conceal from suseuiee authorities the fact that the FBI 

25 | was engaged in neutralizing and disruptive tactics against 
WW 55124 © pocld:32989566 Page 58 
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is 
3 
f | 
< 

% 1 revolutionary and violence-prone groups. 
N 
© 
WN 

g 2 Now, the Committee has received testimony that the New 
< : 

3 5 Left COINTELPRO programs was not, in fact, told to higher 

4 authorities, the Attorney Gereral and Congress. 

~ "5 Do you have any information in this regard? 

6 I know in that statement you cite on¥# or two instances, 

q but in terms of the bulk of COINTEL programs, the record 

8 seems to date at least to be clear that there was not systemati 

9 information flowing upward through the chain of command to 

LO Director Hoover's superiors? 

Li Mr. Kelleyit May I ask that I be given the opportunity 

< 12 to substantiate that with documentation? 
3 : 
: 13 Senator Hart of Colorado. Sure. 
3 

wL4 . Mr. Kelley: Or respond to it. 

15 Senator Hart of Colorado. Dorector Kelley, Just in 

16 passing, ado you agree with the statement made by President 

1? Ford that those responsible foi harassing and trying to destroy 

18 || Dr. King should be brought to justice. 
WA Aunt 

19 Mr. Kelley. TEGee i) Garey responsible, and upon. whcse ee 

ae 
29 || the activities were taker! responsible . I don't know if he inténded £0 say 

2) || that, but if he did not, E would say that it would be more proper. Insofar 
eee 

292 aS My Own opinion is concerned, shak = be centered on those who said 

2% to do a those who are responsible. 

24 I. took the responsibility for any such program and I 

~ “~ a b 

25 don't expect that those under me would be not acting in 
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we learned in that investigation. 

2500 

accordance with what they Sige is proper and may even have 

some reservation, but they do it on my orders. I accept that 

responsibility, 

I think that it should rest on those who instructed that 

that be done. 

Senator Hart of Colorado. But you agree that the people 

who give the orders should be brought to Justice. 

Mr. Kelley. TI ao. 

The Chairman. Aren't they all dead? 

Mr. Kelley. No. 

The Chairman. Not quite? 

Mr. Kelley. Not eel, 

Senator Hart of Colorado. That's all, Mr, Chairman. 

The Chairman. Thank you, Senator. 

Director Kelley, in the Ssnnieesess review of the 

COINTELPRO snoceam and other political involvements of the 

FBL, it seems to me that we have encountered two or three 

basic questions. 

Since the investigation is over insofar as the Committee 

is concerned, we're now turning our attention to remedies for 

the future, what I would think would be our constructive 

legislative work, it is very important that we focus on what 

And one thing that we have learned is that Presidents o 

the United States have from time to time ordered the FBI to 

HW 55124 Degcld:32989566 Page 60° 
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ree 
obtain for them certain kinds of infcrmation by exercising the 

necessary surveillance to obtain .-and to have a purely 

political character, that they Simply wanted to have for their 

own personal purposes. | 

I think that you would agree that that is not a proper 

function of the PBL, and you agree. 

Yet, itis awfQlly difficult for anyone in the FBI, 

including the ieeseee, to turn down a President of the United 

states if he receives a direct order from the President. Ee 

is always possible, of course, to say no, and if you insist, 

I will resign, But that puts a very hard burden on any man 

serving in your position, particularly if the President puts 

a good face on the request and makes it sound plausible or 

even invents some excuse. It is always easy for him to say, - 

* 

you cou I am considering Senator White for an important 

position in my sdnanvetvatlon: and I need to know more about 

his activities, particularly of late. I've had some cause 

for concern and I want to be certain -that there is nothing in 

his record that would later embarrass me, and I just want you 

to keep careful track of him and report to me on what he's 

* 

been doing lately. 

It's difficult for you to say back to the President, Mr. 

President, that's a very questionable activity for the FBI, 

and I frankly don't believe that you've given me the real 

reason why you want this man followed. I think his opposition 
ocld: 32969566 Page 61 
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to your current policy is politically embarrassing to you and 

you want to get something on him.. 

I mean, you’ know, ‘the Director can hardly talk back that 

way, and I'm wondering what we caquld do in the way of protecting 

your sietan and the PBI from political exploitation in this 

basic charter that we write. 

Now, I want your suggestions, but let's begin with one 

or two of mine. I would like your geesancen: 

| If we were to write into the law that any. order given you 

either by the President ox by the Attorney. General should ne 

transmitted in writing and should clearly state the objective 

and purpose of the request and that the FBI would maintain 

hose written orders and that furthermore hey would be 

available to any oversight committee of the Congress. If the 

joint committee on inceiatgenes is established, that committee 

would have access to such a file. 

So that the committee itself would be satisfied that 

orders were not being given to the FBI that were improper or 

unlawful. 

What would you think of writing a provision of-that kind 

Mr. Kelley. I would say writing into the law any order 

issued by. the President that is a request for action by the 

Attorney General should be in writing, is certainly, in my 

into a charter for the FBI? 

} 
i 

opinion, 3% a very plausible solution. I'm sure that in 
ocld: 32969566 Page 62 
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1 

contemplation of this there would be some that will say yes 
F 3 

or some that will say no, but I think we could define an 

} 4 

area where you are trying to cure the abuses and we could 
i | 

do that. 

Now as to the availability to any oversight committee 

6 . | 
o£ Congress, I would say generally that I certainly would have 

9 | . 
no objection to this, but again, there may be some request 

8 le ee eee = | : 
for something of high confidentiality that the President might 

. put in writing such as some national or foreign security 

= matter. 

= I would like to have such a consideration be given a 
2 
md . 

: great deal of thought and that the oversight committee review 
fe i : a 
$ 19 | be conditioned with that possibility. I don't think it would 

ie present a problem. ; 

+9 I have said previously that I feel I can discuss every~ 

16 thing except the identity of the informants to the oversight 

i committee, I welcome that. 

= The Chairman. Well, that has been,of course,the way we 

19 proceeded with this Committee. It has worked pretty well, 

Ol x think. 

a1 Now, Senator Goldwater brought up a question on the 

RE Martin Luther King tapes. I would like to pursue that question 

LO Tf 

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, 0.C, 20003 

a 
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y 10 i why are they preserved? Why aren't they Simply destroyed? 
a 

é 2 Is there a problem that we can help through new law to enable 

5 ° the FBI to remove from its files so much of this iecocieeicn: 

+ that is has collected that it is no longer needed or may never 

5 have connected the person with any criminal activity?’ And 

6 yet, all of that information just stays there in the files 

ne year after yea. 

8 What can we do? How can ee be changed? If that's 

not the problem, then what is? Why are these tapes still down 

LO there at the FBI? 

: Lil Mr. Kelley. Well, BP aunee we do have the rule that 

12 | they are maintained ten years. Now, why the rule is your 

15 | question and why, right now, are ie, maintained? Since we 

14, do maintain everything since the inquiry has started and until 

15 that's lifted, we.can't destroy anything. 

16 IT would say that this is a proper area for guidelines 

L? or legislation and again, as I have said, there should he 

1€ | some flexibility and I know that's a broad statement but there 

19 || might be some areas wherein that the subject of the investigatio 

20 | himself may want them retained because it shows his innocence. 

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003 

el E think you have to deliberate this very carefully, but 

22 || it can be done and we are willing to be guided by those 

20 1 rules’ oe 3 - 2». se B- . <eGee 

24 The Chairman, Let me ask you this. The FBI is conducting 

£5 || thousands of investigations every year on possible appointees | HW 55124 jpocld:32989566 Page 64 | 
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to Federal positions. As a matter of Poet, ene only time I 

ever see an FBI agent is when he cones around and flashes his 

badge anaes me a question aide anGne what I know of Mr. 

so and so, who's being considered oe executive office. 

And we have a very brief eenversation in which I tell him that 

s far as I know, he's a loyal and patriotic citizen, and that 

is about the extent of it. 

Then when this file is completed and the person involved 

is either appointed or not appointed, what happens to that 

file? I know it's full of all kinds of gossip because it is 

in the nature of the ieee tigation ee go out to his old 

neighborhoods and talk to everybody who might have known him. 

What happens to the file? is that just retained forever? 

Mr. Kelley. We have some capability of destroying some 

files and they are rather lengthy insofar as retention. We 

haye some archival rules which govern the retention of mateial 
See” 

and is developed in cases involving certain members of the 

Executive Branch of the government. 

I see no reason why this would sae be a proper area 
” 

for consideration ef legislation, 

The Chairman. Gan -you give me any idea of how much’ —~ 

do you have records that would tell us how much time and money 

is being spent by the FBI just in conducting these thousands 

of routine investigations on possible Presidential appointnents 

cbPaleIRRRE Giahe AHS? 

Tee 

i 
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Mx. Kelley. I feel confident we can get it. I do not 

have it now, but if you would like to have the annual cost 

for the gee seen of Federal appointees -- 

The Chairman. Yes. Plus, ou know, plus any other 

information that would indicate to us what proportion of the 

time and effort of the FBI was absorbed in this kind of 

activity. 

Mr. Kelley. I can tell you it is relatively small, but 

I can get you, I think, the exact amount of time and the 

approximate casita 

The Chairman. I wish you would a ne because this is 

a matter we need dees information about. And when you supply 

that data to the Sonseee, would you also supply the —— 

of such investigations each year? . } 

You Know, _ 1 don't expect you to do back 20 or 25 years, 

but give us a aed idea of the last few years. For exanple, 

enough to give us an idea of how much time and how broad the 

reach of these investigations may be. 

Mr, Kelley. Through '70? 

Tne eneqenak That would " sufficient, I would think. 

Tne other matter that is connected to this same subject 

that I would like your best judament on is whether these 

investigations could not be limited to offices of sensitivity. 

That is to say where legitimate national security interest might 

bavea Bed sES" Ge Ht there is a reason to make a close chech on 
t] a eae _ : = — _ ree ee Se — 
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past associations, attitudes and expressions of belief. 

I have often wondered whether we edianie S1anemece 

routine Federal offices that are not particularly sensitive 

in the national security sense from the reach of these FBI 

siecka. 

And so when you respond to the series of questions, I 

wish you would include the offices that are now covered by 

such checks and give us an idea of how far down into the 

Federal bureaucracy this extends. 

Could you do tnat? 

Mr. Kelley. Yes, sir. 

Tne Chairman. Fine. 

Now there is a vote, The vote always comes just at 

he wrong time, but Mr. Schwarze wants to aon you some additiona 

questions for ne record, and there may be or questions, 

too that would be posed by the staff, after which I will ask 

Mr. Schwarz to sateen the hearings. It looks like we're going 

to be tied up on the floor with votes. 

But before I leave I want to thank vou for your testimony, 

“ 

lir. Kelley, and to express my appreciation to you for the 

way you have cooperated with the Committee in the course Of 

its investigation during the past months. 

Mr. Relley. Thank you. | Se 

The Chairman. And I hose: as you do, that as a result 

So 
the work of the Commitkee we can write a generic law for 

566 Page 6 
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4° the FBI that will help to remedy many of the problems we'll 

encounter in the future. . 

pe 4 — Thank you. 

oO 

Os 

~? 

| WARD & PAUL 

14 

LS 

. 16 

19 

18 

: 
! 20 

aL 

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003 

HW 55120 ocla:32989566 Page 68 



‘ i 

Fhone (Area 202) 544-6000, 

LO 

dk 

Le 

LS 
WARD & PAUL 

L4 

15 

16 

1? 

18 

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, 0.C. 20003 

£5 
HW 55124 

t 

ocld: 32969566 Page 69 
i aoe ite oe ans Senet 

2510 

Mr. Schwarz. Mr. ee, T'll try to be very brief. 

On page 5 of your statement oe ; 

Mr. Kelley. What? 

Mr. Schwarz. On page 5 of your statement, the third 

full paragraph, you said the following, and.I would like then 

to question about what you said. "We must recognize that 

iihitens have occurred in the past and will arise in the 

future where the Government may well be expected to depart from 

its traditional role, in the FBI's case, as an investigative 

and intelligence-gathering agency, and take affirmative steps 

which are needed to meet an imminent enveat “eo human life or 

property." 

Now, by that you mean to take what kind of steps in what 

kind of situation? 

And can you give some seaereee examples paca your general 

principles statement? | 

Mr. Kelley. I think that Mr. Adams addressed himself to 

that the other day, where you have an asteamiset who is an 

employee at the waterworks, and he makes a statement that he's 

going to do something which is devastating to the city, and you 

have no way to attack this under the ordinary procedures, and 

so,therefore, you must take some steps to meet that imminent 

threat to human life or property. che 

Mr. Schwarz. So let us take that case as a test of the 

principle. You are saying the extremist has said he is going 



2511 
he) ho a . 

: 1 to do something to the waterworks, poison it or something, and 

2 he is on the way down there with the poison in his car. 

§ =. | Is that the presumption? } 

4. Mr. Kelley. We hadn't gone that far, but all right, you 

5 can exten? iti 

6 Mr. Schwarz. All right, now, in that case you have the . 

” traditional law enforcement bands which ie the power of arrest. 

8 Mr. Kelley. Not under probable cause where he has not 

9 gone down here: The hypothetical we gave was one where he had 

10 not taken any overt acts in perpetration of this. 

17 Mr. Schwarz. Well, if he hasn't taken any overt acts, 

2 12 || are you then in what you would call in imminent threat of 
3 

c 13 human life or property? . 

14 Mr. Kelley. I think so. 

a Mr. Schwarz. How so? Unless he has taken an overt: act: 

16 to buy the poison or to get in the car with the poison, there 

17 is not by definition any threat to life or property. 

18 Mr. Kelley. Mr. Schwarz, I've-been around in this business 

19 a long time. I‘'ve-heard a number of threats which were -issued, 

20 and they thereafter materialized into actions. I don't -chink 

2) pare ieee threats sateen empty ones, because so many times 

29° they have been acted upon. 

23 I was criticized one time when there was a threat made to 

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, 0.C. 20003 
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1 { kill-me, that just means one thing. 

2 | Mr. Schwarz. But I'm not disagreeing with you. 

5 Mr. Kelley. But you are disagreé@ing with me. You're sayin 

4. on the basis of experience that you sande detect a possible 

5 threat. That's ize whole area of concern that we have here, 

6 we—dont t rostl"Ene capability of doing something. We don’t 

” say we should initiate, ourselves. We say that we should go to 

8 the Attorney General. We do not subscribe to the idea that 

9 || we should act independently because maybe we don't have the 

10 judicial reviews the capability of determining, but we do 

11 think that we should report it and thereafter see what can 

12 || be done. | 

13 It | _ Mr. Schwarz. Well, have you changed in the course of 

14 || our discussion the standard on page 5. 

15 On page 5 you're talking about an imminent threat. 

16 Mr. Kelley. Yes. 

7 - Mr. Schwarz. And I hear you now as saying a possibie 

19 Mr. Kelley. An imminent possible threat, 

20 Mr. Schwarz. An imminent possible threat. All-right. 

2] Now, would a fair standard .for eicner action, other than 

292 arrest, I don't know what vou have in mind, but something to 

2% prevent the person from carrying out his activities, other 

410 First Street, S.£., Washington, 0.C. 20003 

04 || than arrest, for instance, what is an example of what you have 

25 in mind? 
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So | | 
3 : 

= a Mr. Kelley. Removing him from his position or whatever 
o 

N a 

g a is necessary in order to make it impossible or at least as 

: 5 impossible as possible to perpetuate this thing. 

4. Mr. Schwarz. You mean have him lose his job or -- 

ae, 2 Mr. Kelley. I don't know what it would be. 

6 Mr. Schwarz. Isolate him in some fashion. 

7 Mr. Kelley. In some fashion perhaps. 

8 Mr. Schwarz. Now, for such activity and for opening 

9 an investigation into a-domestic group, could you live with 

10 | a standard which said you would have to have an immediate 

Ll threat that someone was likely to commit a Serious federal 
af ‘ 
2 

o 12 || crime involving violence? 
3s . 

0 s 

é i Mr. Kelley. I think that this thing could be worked out 
> 

14 || so that there could be an adequate basis for an evaluation. 

15 Mr. Schwarz. So those words, without trying to commit 

16 you entirely to them, do not seem to you to depart far from 

1? what you think would be an acceptable standard. 

18 Mr. Kelley. Well, an imminent, immediate threat might 

19 be, by virtue of the word “immediate” that he's going to 

thaT you ARE 
20 do it the next minute. In that case it may, be-necessany—hom 

el you—bo7—not—wirkh--the—presence” or tiie=possibissrty? not able 

QA to do anything except put him under arrest, orm.anythan gee 

23 Mr. Schwarz. O£ course, of course. . 

24 And nobody would at all disagree with that kind of action. 

25 Mr. Kelley. I don't think they would either. 
) HW 55124 ocld: 32969566 Page 2 
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Mr. Schwarz. But on the question, let's take the opening 

of an investigation into a domestic group. 

Is it basically consistent with practicality to make the 

test immediate threat of a serious Federal crime involving 

violence? 

Mr.Kelley. To open a domestic security case. 

Mr. -Schwarz. Yes. 

Mr. Kelley. It appears to me that this is a pecoe eae 

activity, in.effect. We certainly have terrorist activities 

under our jurisdiction as a threat against the United States. 

Mr. Schwarz. Now, are there other circumstances where 

it is justifiable to open an investigation of the domestic 

group where you do not have an immediate threat of serious. 

federal crime involving violence? 

Mr. Kelley. Oh, I think there are other criteria, and 

they have been well defined as to what is the possible 

opening, the basis for a possible opening. We haven't been 

discussing that, we’have been discussing particular instances, 

but there are other criteria that are used, yes. 

Mr. Schwarz. What would the other criteria be?_ 

Mr. Kelley. Well, the possible statutory violations 

over which we have jurisdiction are, generally speaking, the 

most used of the basis, Ana then you have, of course, some 

intelligence investigations which nn ee ee o 

short durations) ff there is no showing of this bones 

ocld: 32989566 Page f3 
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Or a viable intent. 

Mr. Schwarz. So that's what you're looking for in the 

intelligence investigation? | | 

Mr. Kelley. . By intelligence investigation, yes, you 

are looking to prevent. 

Mr. Schwarz. And what you are looking to Epeyene, and 

what you're looking to find is a Likelihood of action combined 

with an intent to take an issue? 

Mr. Kelley. “and the capability. 

Mr. Schwarz. And the capability. 

All right. I just have two other lines, Mr. Kelley, and 

r salads very much your time. 

_ Mr. Kelley. That's all right. : 

Mc. Schwarz. Assuming a legitimate investigation has - 

been started into a domestic intelligence matter, aie it legiti- 

mate for the FBI, in addition to Bees ane ieccenatien that 

relates to what we've just been talking about, the likelihood 

of violent action, is it also legitimate for the FBI to 

collect, A, retain, B, disseminate, C, information concerning 

let's say the sex life of a person on the one hand, and the 

political views ae person on the other? 

Mr. Kelley. I think, ed Schwarz, that this is just what 

many of our problensand perhaps the guidelines can define Tatu, 

Ahis—type.oenthing; I think probably you will agree that 

within the determination cf the deviations possibiy of sex 

: { Sa estes —__- _ 
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lives, there might be something that is relevant. I would say 

ordinarily it's not. and so far as political views, yes, 

think that this could be, if he is espousing some cause or 

some view that advocates violence or the overthrow of the 

government. 

Mr. Schwarz. Would those be the two limits on politi 

views? - } 

Mr. Kelley. What? 

L 

cal. 

Mr. Schwarz. Would those be the only limits on political 

views that you think are okay to collect, advocants of violence 

or advocants of overthrow? 

Mr. Kelley. Well, I don‘t think because he's a Democrat 

or a Republican it would be anything that would be damaging, 

but it might on the other hand counter the.report that he' 

a member of some other organization. 

Mr. Schwarz. Is the standard you used on collection 

Ss 

of 

sex life information, might be relevant? I suppose anything 

might be relevant, but don‘t you think that as a function 

balance, it has to have a high degree of relevance before 

of 

itis 

justifiable to collect that kind of information on American 

citizens who are not suspected of having committed crimes? 

Mr. Kelley. Insofar as doing it presently, it has been 

included in some reports as a result of the requirement that 

that is what is required by our rules, that when a person 

reports something to us, we do a report of the complaint. 
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as a determination by guidelines that might be prepared later, 

I think that we can certainly deliberate on this to see whether 

or not this is something we should retain, and we aol not 

object to anything reasonable in that regard. 

Mr. Schwarz. I just have one final question. 

Taking the aceiaiat manual and trying to understand its 

applicability laid against the facts in the Martin Luther King 

case, under Section 87 there is a ~~ permission is granted to 

open investigations of the infiltration of non-subversive 

groups, and the first sentence reads: ."When information is 

received indicating that a sides group is seeking to 

systematically infiltrate and control a non-subversive group 

or organization, an investigation can be opened." 

Now, I take it that is the same standard that was used 

in opening the investigation of the Southern Christian Leadersh 

Conference in the 1960s, so that invéstigation could still be 

open today under the FBI manual, the current FBI manual. 

Mr. Kelley. We are interested in the infiltration of 

clearly subversive groups into non-subversive groups inasmuch 

as this is a ploy that is used many times, and having infil- 

trated, they. then get control, and they have a self-laundered 

organization which they can use, and not, certainly, to the 

benefit of the country. 

Mx. Schwarz. But is the answer to my question yes, that 

under that standard, the SCLC investigation could still be 
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opened today? 

Mr. Kelley. I think so. 

Mr. Schwarz. All right, then, just one final question. 

‘Do you agree that special care needs to be taken not only 

of the standards for initially opening an investigation of a 

group, but perhaps extra care needs to be taken when the investil- 

gation goes beyond the initial target group to individuals 

or people who come into contact with it? 

Mr. Kelley. t don't know if I agree with that entirely. ce 

you mean that we go into the -non-subversive group y*that we 

then investigate peopie in that non~subversive group, not the 

ew me 
infiltrators, but the nov what we conduct a lengthy investigation 

of them wenege any basis for doing so other than that they 

are in an infiltrated group, I would likely have said -- but 

off the top of my head I would say probably that! Ss not — 

Mr. Schwarz. Thank you very much. 

Mr. Smothers. Just a couple of very brief lines of 

ingtiry, Mr. Kelley. 

~ think that the questions of the Chief Counsel. was 

raising is one that goes further into your statement, fin gol ; 

talk about the difficulty of setting out the line between. | 

intelligence gathering and law enforcement kinds of functions. . | 

NEverenenees: though, I think that you have made an effort, | 

r indeed, the Bureau's organizational scheme reflects un el: Sort 

to distinguish some of this has been made. 
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Putting aside for one moment the counterespionage 

effort, and looking strictly at what we have -been calling the 

Domestic Intelligence, is it sone ies that the retention of 

this function in the Bureau is critical ‘i the Bureau's 

law enforcement position? 

- Mr. Kelley. My personal opinion is that the Bureau does 

a splendid job in this area. I feel further that the Si esiaieadal 

of criminal investigatory activities and experiences which - 

all counterintelligence people have is very helpful. It is help- 

ful not only in gathering knowledge and experience, it also 

AAeaane ae 
enters into thes field ;~a=pexsson=with=a broad understanding 

of she rights and privileges, and you don't have so wc Ena 

SPY types that cloak and dagger, that very, very secret type 

of an operation. | : 

I subscribe to the present system hears: 

Mr. Smothers. Would it be of assistance to your mission 

if within the Bureau guidelines were established that 

effectively limited access or controlled dissemination of 

the intelligence product? In other words, if we had a 

Situation where the intelligence product is critical to assist 

the law enforcement effort, I don't think there's any question 

that there should be access to it. 

mer 

Isn't our problem one of controlling the use of that 

intelligence product and preventing the kind of murky crossing | 

of lines there with the information legitimately needed for 

ocld: 32969566 Page Té 
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Mr. Kelley. There is always a problem when there is wide 

dissemination, because that just numerically increases the 

possibility of misuse, abuse or slander, libel, or anything 

of that matter, and I think that it would be well worthwhile 

to review the dissemination rules to make them subject _ 

close guidance in the guidelines that we're speaking of. 

| Mr. Smothers. Let me just raise one final siemeneiee you. 

We talked a little bit about, or a question was raised _— 

the investigation now being conducted by the Justice Department | 

regarding the improper actions on the COINTELPRO, and the 

King case in particular. 

As we look at allegations of impropriety by your personnel 

I think it would be helpful for our record-here to have some | 

insight into the procedure the Bureau would: normally follow. 

What does the Bureau do when you get an allegation that 

an agent or administrative official in the Bureau has behaved 

improperly? 

routinely referred to the Justice Department? a 

Is an investigation conducted internally, or is it 

Mr. Kelley. There may be a revision in this type of 

procedure as a result of the establishment of the Council for 

Professional Responsibility. At present it would be in the 

Pita te Won 
great majority of the cases turned over to our énvestrgative 

Division for investigation. There might, on some unusual 

AA ET TE OO ne MA LAER TS Ae 
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5 1 occasion, be a designation of a special task force made up, 
ai 

2 perhaps, of division Heads. That is most unlikely, but it is 

: 3 Pee internally at present. 

4 Mr. Smothers. Would these internal determinations be 

5 reviewed by Justice, or do you think that is a necessary 

6 step? 

" I guess what we are searching for here is, first of all, 

3 I think you answered that, well, to what extent Baas eae 

9 Bureau police itself, and then secondly, is the Department of 

10 || Justice involved in the policy aeteminarions? 

at For instance, what if the Attorney. General disagreed with 

: 12 || the assertion that only the higher up officials who ordered 

13 || the action against King should be the subject of investigation 

z 
14 and maybe prosecution? 

a How does the interplay work there patwaen. ea and Justice? 

16 Mr. Kelley. We do report to the Attorney General those 

17 activities which we construe as improper or possibly. illegal. 

1g || There is a possibility that the Department, having been advised 

19 of the situation, might take it on their own to do their own 

20 investigating, and #his is something that we feel is va 

21 decision to be made only rather rarely, because we feel we 

22 || have within our own organization sufficient capability to 

2% handle that. But we do not protest it. It is handled 

410 First Street, S.E., Washington, D.C. 20003 
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S 2 Mr. Schwarz. Thank you. 
x 

3 3 (Whereupon, at 12:12 o'clock p.m., the Committee recessed 

4 subject to the call of the Chair.) 
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